BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE : D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092
Tel.: 011-22140122 « Email: brightbuildtech.roc@gmail.com
CIN : U45201DL2006PTC146221

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 18™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF BRIGHT
BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE AT
D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092 ON TUESDAY, THE 2"° DAY OF JULY, 2024 AT 02:00
P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

To receive and adopt the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ending
31* March, 2024 including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended 31% March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration by passing the following resolution

as an ordinary resolution with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to
time or any other law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or amendment
thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s MANV & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Firm Registration No, 007351N, be and are hereby re-appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of 5(five) financial years starting from the Financial Year
2024-25 to 2028-29, from the conclusion of the 18" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 23" Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the
Company and the Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to sign, execute all such documents, file necessary e-Forms with ROC and do all such
acts, deeds and things which may be necessary to give effect the above resolution,”

For and on behalf of Bright Buildtech Private Limited

Pratap Singh

Director
DIN; 05195185

Ad
Gh

d: C-143, Surya Nagar,
aziabad, U.P.-201011

Place: Delhi

Da

te: 07.06.2024



NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THIS ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (AGM) MAY APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL
ON HIS BEHALF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY,
PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT
HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE AGM. THE PROXY MUST BE
DATED AND STAMPED. THE PROXY FORM IS ATTACHED ALONG WITH THIS
NOTICE.

THE REGISTER OF DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
SHAREHOLDING MAINTAINED UNDER SECTION 170 OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013 SHALL BE OPEN FOR INSPECTION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.

CORPORATE MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO SEND A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 113 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AUTHORIZING THEIR REPRESENTATIVES TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON THEIR BEHALF AT THE MEETING.

MEMBERS, PROXIES AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES ARE
REQUESTED TO BRING TO THE MEETING, THE ATTENDANCE SLIP
ENCLOSED HEREWITH, DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED MENTIONING
THEREIN. DETAILS OF THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID/ FOLIO NO. DUPLICATE
ATTENDANCE SLIP OR COPIES OF THE REPORT AND ACCOUNTS WILL NOT
BE MADE AVAILABLE AT THE AGM VENUE.

A ROUTE MAP SHOWING DIRECTIONS TO THE VENUE OF THE 18" AGM IS
GIVEN AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE AS PER THE REQUIREMENT OF THE
SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 ON “GENERAL MEETINGS”.



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE : D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092
Tel.: 011-22140122 ¢ Email: brightbuildtech.roc@gmail.com
CIN : U45201DL2006PTC146221

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEM NO.2

Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5(Five) Financial Years

M/s MANV & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 00735IN has been
proposed to be re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5(five)
consecutive years. The Company has also received consent and eligibility letter to be appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Section 139 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for the approval by the shareholders.

BY AND ON BEHALF OF BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
For BRIGHT BUILBTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

PRATAP SINGH RATHI
DIRECTOR

DIN:05195185

ADD: C-143, SURYA NAGAR,
GHAZIABAD, U.P-201011

Date: 07.06,2024
Place: Delhij



Annexure-A

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Please fill this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall
[ Folio No/DP ID & Client ID *: W

No. of shares held:

Name and address of the shareholder/ proxy:

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting (the ‘AGM ') of the members of Bright
Buildtech Private Limited (“the Company”) to be held at on Tuesday, the 2" day of July, 2024, at the
registered office of the Com pany at D-35, Anand Vihar, New Delhi-1 10092, at 02:00 P, M.

*Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form.

Signature of the Member / Joint Members / Proxy attending the Meeting



Annexure-B
Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule | 9(3) of the Companies ( Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014/

CIN: U45201DL2006PTC14622]
Name of the Company: Bright Buildtech Private Limited
Registered office; D-35, Anand Vihar, New Delhi-110092
Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id;
Folic No/ Client [d:
DP 1D

[/We, being the member (s) of Bright Buildtech Private Limited, hereby appoint;

E-mail Id:
Signature..............cooveeiiireniiinn, OF failing him

2 Name: oo

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature......cooeooc oo ivvveiinnenns. OF failing him

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting (the *AGM")
of the members of Bright Buildtech Private Limited (“the Company™) to be held on Tuesday, the 2™ Day of July, 2024 ai
02:00 P.M. at the registered office of the Company at D-35, Anand Vihar, New Delhi-| 10092, and at any adjournmem
thereof'in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolution Vote [

For T Against

Special Business

) To receive and consider and adopt the Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 including the
Audited Balance Sheet, Statements of Profit & Loss and
reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2, To approve the re-appointment of M/s MANY & Associates
as the Statwtory Auditors of the Company for a period of Five
consecutive years.,

——

L
Affix

Signedon ....., day of......... 2024 Revenuye
Stamp
Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy, to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the =L
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting,



ANNEXURE-C
Route Map
Bright Buildtech Private Limited
Annual General Meeting

Day: Tuesday

Date: 2 July, 2024

Time: 02:00 P.M,

From: Anand Vihar Metro Station

To
Venue: Registered Office: D-35, Anand Vihar, New Delhi-110092
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE : D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092
Tel.: 011-22140122 » Email: brightbuildtech.roc@gmail.com
CIN : U45201DL2006PTC146221

BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 18" Annual Report on the affairs of the Company together
with the Financial Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2024.

1‘

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:

The Profit & Loss accounts attached herewith gives the clear indication of the performance of the
Company. A summary of the Company’s performance from 1* April, 2023 to 31 March, 2024 is as
follows:

Financial Year Financial_Year
PARTICULARS 2023-2024 2022-23
(Rs. / Lakh) (Rs. / Lakh)
TURNOVER 14,095.98 10,735.66
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE
TAXATION (275.64) (1,544.50)
LESS: TAX 0.00 16.92
PROFIT/LOSS AFTER TAX (275.64) 3,103.09
ADD: BALANCE B/F
FROM PREVIOUS YEAR (8,233.00) (11,335.96)
BALANCE PROFIT/LOSS (8508.63) (8,233.00)
C/F TONEXT YEAR

RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:
The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under:

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended 31°
March, 2024, which affect the financial position of the Company,

The Company has neither made any application during the financial year nor there is any proceeding
against the Company at the end of the financial year under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016. The Company has not entered into a one-time settlement with any bank.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:

No amount is to be transferred to General Reserve during the financial year ended 31 March, 2024,



DIVIDEND:

To plough back the profits into business activities, Directors deems it proper to preserve the resources
of the Company for its activities and therefore do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2023-24.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Your Company does not have any subsidiaries, so there is no need to prepare consolidated financial
statement for the Financial Year 2023-24,

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

During the year under review, there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in
future.

However, pursuant to the order dated 01.09.2023 passed by the Hon’ble NCLT Altahabad Bench,
Mega Town Planners Pvt, Ltd. (Transferor Company No. 3) along with other 3 Companies has
merged with Star Landeraft Pvt. Ltd, (Transferee Company). Consequently, Star Landcraft Private
Limited has become the new shareholder of the Company holding 99.99% shares.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY:
No changes were made in the Share Capital of the Company.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors of the Company having
Firm Registration No. 000050N resigned from their office vide resignation letter dated 26.03.2024
and the same was noted by the directors at a duly convened Board Meeting dated 28.06.2024.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s MANV &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 007351N were appointed as the new
Statutory Auditors of the Company vide Board meeting dated 28.03.2024 and the appointment was
approved by the shareholders vide General Meeting dated 08.04.2024, who shall hold the office till
the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Moreover, the Statutory Auditors whose tenure ends at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, have
been recommended for their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company to audit the accounts
of the Company for a period of five years from 2024-2025 till 2028-2029 and shall hold office unti
the conclusion of 23" Annual General Meeting.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments. There are no qualifications or observations ot remarks made by M/s
MANYV & Associates, Chartered Accountants in their Report.



10. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind-AS$”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

11. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all the provisions of the secretarial standards during the year.
12, CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of the business of your Company.
13. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, neither any director of the Company resigned nor any new director
has been appointed.

14. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to the appointment of
Independent Directors do not apply to our Company.

15. DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OTHER
THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

The auditors of your Company did not find any act which can be termed as fraud committed by any
one of the Directors or Officers of the Company.

16, PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its employees during the Year under
review. No amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on
the date of Balance Sheet. There are no deposits which are not in compliance with the requirement
of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy NA
The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy NA
The capital investment on energy conservation equipments NA

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
The efforts made towards technology absorption NA

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product | NA
development or import substitution




In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned | NA
from the beginning of the financial year)

The expenditure incurred on research and development NA

Details of Foreign currency transactions are as follows:

a. The company has not earned any income in Foreign Currency during the year.
b. The company has not incurred any expenditure in Foreign Currency.

18. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishment of CSR
Committee and minimum CSR expenditure does not apply to your Company.

19. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD:
During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Board of Directors met 8 times during the following dates:

10 May, 2023

19" June, 2023

12 July, 2023

28" August, 2023
29" September, 2023
09" October, 2023
19" January, 2024
28" March, 2024

QNN B b —

The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

The details of number of meetings attended by each of the directors of the Company are as follows;

SE;I‘(')AL NAME OF DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED
v . . 8
L. r. Pratap Singh Rathi
o 8
5 Mr. Jagdeep Singh Gill

Proper Notices were given and the proceedings were duly recorded on the Minutes of the meeting
and kept at the registered office of the Company.

20. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm
that

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;
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23.

24.

25.

(ii)The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that
period;

(iii} The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(v)The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of
unfortunate events or to maximise the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid down a
comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from
time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk
through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the
Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business,
project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has in place, adequate system of internal control to ensure compliance with policies
and procedures. It is being constantly assessed and strengthened with new/ revised standard operating
procedures and tighter information Technology controls,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE

There were 12 employees in the Company, however no employee gets remuneration above the limit
prescribed under provisions of Rule 5(2) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GURANTEES AND INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186:

The Loans and Guarantees given and Investments were made under the provisions of section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and are given under notes to the financial
statements,

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9;

As per MCA Notification dated 05.03.2021 there is an amendment in Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f 05.03.2021 pursuant to which the requirement of attaching the
extract of the annual return with the Board’s Report in Form No. MGT.9 has been omitted in Rule
12 of the said rules.



26,

27.

28.

29,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

As per the Notification No.GSR 464(E) by MCA dated 5" June, 2015, any transaction by a Private
Company with its holding, Subsidiary or associate Company shall not be treated as Related Party
Transactions.

Accordingly, in view of the above notification by MCA, there are no Related Party Transactions
which are covered under section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 during the FY 2023-2024.

CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY:
There has been no change in the registered office of the Company, during the year under review.
However, the Company has proposed to shift the Registered Office of the Company from the

National Capital Territory of Delhi to the State of Uttar Pradesh under the jurisdiction of Registrar
of Companies (ROC), Kanpur and the same is under process,

COST RECORDS

The Company is not covered under the provisions relating to maintenance of cost records as specitied
by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company is committed towards the best corporate practices followed and are in continuous
development of the business for attaining high standards of integrity to act as a torch bearer 10 set an
example of Absolute Compliance.

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and sincere gratitude for
the assistance and co-operation received from the financial institutions,

Government authorities, customers, vendors, members, and the Bankers during the year under review
and look forward to their continued co-operation in the years to come.

Your Directors acknowledge the support and co-operation received from the employees, staff and
workers and all those who have helped in the day to day management.

BY AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

S BRI

o
DIRECTOR — DIRECTOR
PRATAP SINGH RATHI JAGDEEP SINGH GILL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 05195185 DIN: 01599882

DATE: 07.06.2024
PLACE: DELHI

1P ¢ LIMITED For BRIGHT BUNLDT
TN LIMITE LOTECH ER’I/VATE LIMITED



MANYV & ASSOCIATES @AN
Chartered Accountants

D-9/236A, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,Telefax : 22046114, Mob. : 9810323670 mail : ca_nkgupta@yahoo.com, www.manvindia.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2024 and its profit and total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘the ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

\We draw attention to Note 43 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company has a negative
net worth of Rs. 8,507.47 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 8,231.84 lakhs). These events or conditions, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. However, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern
basis for the reasons stated in the said note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

C-4, lind Floor Central Market, Lajpat Nagar-2, New Delhi-110024, Tel : 011-41633988, mail : infocamanv.com
K-74, Jalvayu Vihar, Sector 25, Noida, UP-201301, Tel. : 9810621258, mail : rajeshaggarwal135@gmail.com




Emphasis of matter

Attention is drawn to Note 42 to the accompanying financial statements, regarding non submission of
quarterly financial results for the financial year 2023-24, as required by Regulation 52 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Our opinion is not modified with respect to the above matter.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained
at the date of this auditor’s report is [information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management'’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but, is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could




reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.




(d)

(€)

()

(9)

(h)

0

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The matter described in the Material uncertainty related to Going Concern section above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private company,
Section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements. Refer Note 34(d) to the financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year.




vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instances of the audit trail feature being tempered with.

As proviso to Rule 3 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023 , reporting under Rule11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rule, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for
the financial year ended March, 2024.

For MANV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(RRN 007351N) /

(Membership No. 085713)
UDIN :- 24085713BKAUGH3950

New Delhi,
Date : 07t June, 2024



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024.

(i) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(@)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(B)
of the Order are not applicable..

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment under
which property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the previous
year and according to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company
does not hold any immovable property in the nature of ‘Property plant and equipment’. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the year,
being under cost model. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable.

(e) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as
amended in 2016) and Rules made thereunder.

(i)

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the
nature of inventory, the physical verification by the way of verification of title deeds, site visits by
the Management and Certification of the extent of the work completed by the competent persons,
are at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not
been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institution on the basis of security
of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order are not applicable.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any investment
in or provided any guarantee or security. The Company has granted unsecured loans and advances in
the nature of loans, to companies during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans, to Companies, the details of
which are as given below:

Particulars Loans
(Rs./Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year

- Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company 2010.00
- Entities under significant influence 60.00
- Others

2070.00




(b)

()

(iv)

(v)

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date:

- Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company 14,306.23

- Entities under significant influence -

- Others 666.47
14,972.70

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion
that the terms and conditions of grant of loans granted by the Company are prejudicial to the
Company'’s interest on account of the fact that these loans have been granted free of interest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has not been stipulated. According to the information and explanations
given to us, these loans are repayable and the repayment of principal amounts has not been
demanded by the Company. In our opinion, the question of repayment being regular does not
arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, loans or
advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year
has not been renewed or extended or fresh loan extended to settle the overdue of existing
loans given to the same party.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted Loans
or advances in the nature of loans which are either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment, except for the following cases:

Particulars Other parties Related Parties
Aggregate amount of loans /

advances in nature of loans

(Rs./lakhs)

- Repayable on demand (A) 666.47 14,306.23

Agreement does not specify any - -
terms or period of repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 666.47 14,306.23
Percentage of loans/advances in 4.45% 95.55%
nature of loans to the total loans

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185. The Company engaged in the business of real estate development which
has been classified as infrastructural facilities as per Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 2013,
accordingly, provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits nor the amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and further the Company
had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.




(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's
products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, statutory dues
including goods and services tax, duty of customs provident fund and employee state
insurance, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been
regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay in
deposit of income tax. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

We are informed that the operations of the company during the year did not give rise to any
liability for excise duty, services tax, value added tax, sales tax and employee state
insurance,

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except for the following cases:

Name of Nature of Amount Period Amount Forum where Remarks,
the statute the dues (Rs./ to paid under dispute is ifany
Lakhs) which protest pending
the (Rs./Lakhs)
amount
relates
Income Tax Income 209.33 2014-15 B Commissioner
Act, 1961 Tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Income 94,55 2015-16 - Commissioner
Act,1961 Tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Income 453.47 2017-18 - Commissioner
Act, 1961 Tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)
| T | Commissioner
ncome Tax ncome
1026.01 201920 - of Income T
Act, 1961 Tax (Appeals)
Commissioner
Income Tax Income 888.53 2020-21 - of Income Tax
Act,1961 Tax (FAppRais)
Income Tax  Income : Commissioner
plrgionn T 429.94 2021-22 15.50 &f Incohie Tax
(Appeals)
Value Sales tax 112.42 2013-14 - Joint  Excise
Added Tax and Taxation
Act Commissioner

(Appeals)




Value Sales tax 73.94 2014-15 - Joint  Excise

Added Tax and Taxation
Act Commissioner
(Appeals)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)

(@)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not
been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans were applied for the
purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-term basis to the
extent of Rs. 9,125.49 lakhs have been used for long-term purposes including funding of
accumulated losses by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

(x)
(a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order are not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally). Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3 (x)(b) of the order are not applicable.

(xi)
(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period

covered by our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order
are not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.
Since, the Company is a private limited company, therefore, the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company.




(xiv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have an internal audit system as it is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) (a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

(xv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with its directors,
hence provision of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi)

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI’) Act, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
a valid Certificate of Registration from the RBI as per the RBI Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC") as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) The Group (has no CIC)/(does not have more than one CICs) which are part of the Group.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) (d) of the order are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. NIL in the current financial year, and Rs. 1438.95 lakhs in
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and there was no
issue, objection or concerns raised by outgoing auditors.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company may not be capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. Also refer ‘Material uncertainty related to going concern’
paragraph of our main audit report.

(xx) Since the provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, provisions
of clause 3 (xx) (a) and (b) of the order are not applicable.

(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable.

For MANV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
N 007351N)

Partner
(Membership No. 085713)
UDIN :-24085713BKAUGH3850

New Delhi,
Date : 07" June, 2024



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Bright Buildtech
Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Annexure B
Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of BRIGHT
BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company") as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’'s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MANV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(ERN 007351N)

NKG %»\W

Partner
(Membership No. 085713)

New Delhi,
Date ;: 07" June, 2024



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024

Note As at As at
No. 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Assets
1 Non-current assets
a. Property, plant and equipment 3 17.91 21.79
b. Financial assets
i. Other financial assets 4 8.00 9.01
c. Income tax assets (net) 5 493.20 377.80
d. Other non current assets 6 15.50 488 .41
534.61 897.01

2 Current assets
a. Inventories 7 20,266.08 31,244.85

b. Financial assets

I. Trade receivables 8 - 6.58
i. Cash and cash equivalents 9 439.36 130.34
iii. Other bank balances 10 7.05 5.66
iv. Loan 11 14,972.70 14,385.03
c. Other current assets 6 122 .61 736.40
35,807.81 46,509.87
Total assets 36,342,42 47,406.87
Equity and liabilities
1 Equity
a. Equity share capital 12 1.16 1.16
b. Other equity 13 (8,508.63) (8,233.00)
Total equity (8,507.47) (8,231.84)
2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 14 - .
b. Deferred tax liabilities 15 S =
¢. Provisions 16 5.34 3.35
5.34 3.35
Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 14 25,033.52 32,908.26
ii. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 17 - 4580
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 17 542.26 1,068.50
enterprises and small enterprises
iii. Other financial liabilities 18 2,585.82 2,410.40
b. Other current liabilities 19 16,682.74 19,202.28
c. Provisions 16 0.22 0.01
44,844.55 55,635.35
Total liabilities 44,849.89 55,638.71
Total equity and liabilities 36,342.42 47,406.87

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For MANV & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Bright Buildtech Private Limited

For Bright Buildtech pyt. 1y, For Br ight Buil

Naresh Jagdeep Singh % Pra £
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 085713 DIN: 988 Di DIN: 05195185
| irector | Di
Irector
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: OF June, Q,O;H Date: &}Magjwy? Date: &} Mo?,)o&"



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221

Statement of profit and loss Alc for the year ended 31 March, 2024

|
I
1

v

Vi

vil

Vil

Xl

Xl

Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Revenue from operations 20 14,095.98 10,735.66
Other income 21 797.74 81.06
Total income (1 + 1) 14,893.73 10,816.72
Expenses
a. Cost of land/ development rights 22 13,051.92 10,840.74
b. Employee benefits expense 23 100.72 93.92
c. Finance costs 24 898.74 983.52
d. Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 3.89 5.55
e. Other expenses 26 1,114.10 437.49
Total expenses (IV) 15,169.37 12,361.22
_Proﬁt.-‘(Loss} before tax and exceptional (275.64) (1,544.50)
items (llI-1V)
Exceptional ltems 27 - 4.664.51
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (V-VI) (275.64) 3,120.01
Tax expense
a. Current tax 28 - G
b. Income tax related to prior period - 16.92
c. Deferred tax 28 2
- 16.92
Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) (275.64) 3,103.09
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability - (0.13)
Income tax relating to above 3
Other comprehensive income for the year - (0.13)
Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) (275.64) 3,102.96
Earning per equity share
Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each
Basic (Rs. Per share) 29 (2,371.12) 26,693.26
Diluted (Rs. Per share) 29 (2,371.12) 26,693.26

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For MANV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi

Date: 3 Jyne, 2024

For QHgidcB S ingRaGiPyt, Lid,

Director

D[N}swﬁ’ez

Place: New Delhi

Date: A} Md?, 2024

Dirertar

Fordsighsingh e

Director
DIN: 05185185

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bright Buildtech Private Limited

Director

.Place: New Delhi

Date: r}:} mﬂ’(}(r?«o%



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax (275.64) 3,120.01
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.89 555
Interest income (10.36) (74.67)
Allowance for expected credit loss - (4,664.51)
Finance cost 692.36 850.13
410.23 (763.49)
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 10,978.77 8,129.25
Trade receivables 6.58 50.17
Other current assets 613.79 75.91
Other non-current assets 472.91 (15.50)
Loan (587.68) 922.30
Other non-current financial assets 1.01 "
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (572.15) (286.86)
Other current financial liabilities 175.42 (5,981.42)
Other current liabilities (2,519.54) (5,498.88)
Provision 2.20 (132.59)
Cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 8,981.55 (3,501.11)
Income taxes paid (net) (115.41) (142.99)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 8,866.14 (3,644.11)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipments - (0.93)
Other bank balances (0.39) (0.56)
Interest received 10.36 74.67
Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities 9.97 73.18
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term borrowings - -
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net) - (15,797.01)
Repayment of short term borrowings (net) (7,874.74) 20,015.20
Proceeds from issue of share capital = ™
Interest paid (692.36) (850.13)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (8,567.10) 3,368.06
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 309.02 (202.87)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 130.34 333.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (refer note 9) 439.36 130.34

Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For MANV & Associates
Chartered Accountants P‘- SSox

For Bright Buildtech py¢

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bright Buildtech Private Limited

Jagdeep Singh %‘d" melﬁl Baibdicth

D[rector Director

g9 2 DIN: 05195185
Irector

(m's Reglstratlgn No. 007351N /2 /—y
Nari up NEW
Partner % DELH]

Membership No. 085713 o)

] Directar
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date:oz;' Mﬂ"‘%JA’ Date: a g W' 2017

Place: New Delhi f?é‘o ACGO\)\\

Date: OZ]'JUM i %W



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
__Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2024

No. of shares Rs. | lakhs

A. Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 11,625 1.16
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors s -
Reinstated balance at the beginning of the year 11,625 1.16
|ssue of equity share capital - -

Balance as at 31 March, 2024 11,625 1.16

Retained Securities premium Total
earnings

Rs./ lakhs Rs.! lakhs Rs./ lakhs
B. Other equity

Balance as at 31 March, 2022 (13,186.90) 1,850.94 (11,335.96)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 3.103.00 = 310309
Pramium on issue of shares 5 - »
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of (013) - (013)
income tax

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 (10,083.94) 1,850.94 (8,233.00)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (275.64) - (275.64)
Premium on issue of shares s .
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of » '

income tax

Balance as at 31 March, 2024 (10,359.59) 1,850.94 (8,508.63)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For Brioi-+ posegs
For MANV & Associates Mgt Byl
Chartered Accountants

Firm's, Registration No. 007351N

of ths Boalgf
Bright Buildtec| "Limited

77

/ _’4 Director
=~ Jagdegp Singh Gill atap Singh Rathi

Director Director
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN -U45201DL2006PTC 146221

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Other financial asset

a.

Non-current

Security deposits

Income tax assets (net)

a.

Tax refund receivables

Other assets

l. Non-current

a. Advance for land

b. Taxes paid under protest

Note :-

ll. Current

a. Advances to suppliers

b.  Prepaid expenses
Inventories

(lower of cost and net realisable value)

a,
b.
c.

Land (refer note 36)

Development rights (refer note 36)
Construction work in progress (refer note 36)

Trade receivables

a.
b.
c.

d.

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivable which have

significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowances for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowances)

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs

8.00 9.01

8.00 9.01
493.20 377.80
493.20 377.80

. 472.91

15.50 15.50
15.50 488.41
12077 73332
1.84 3.08
122.61 736.40
19.16 41.04
1,739.47 377426
18,507.45 27,429 55
20,266.08 31,244.85
- 6.58
143.31 320.77
143.31 327.35
(143.31) (320.77)
(143.31) (320.77)

= 6.58

For Bright Buildtech Pvt. Ltd.

MV

| T

Director



Notes: Ageing schedule of trade receivables-

~As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 6 months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
6 months -1 year Years

Rs./ lakhs Rs./lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - E - -
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which - - - - - - -
have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit - = = - - 143.31 143.31
impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - B - B E =
good
Disputed Trade receivables — which have - - = “ = & :
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit - - - - - - -
impaired

- - 143.31 143.31

As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 6 months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
6 months -1 year Years

Rs./lakhs Rs./lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Undisputed Trade Receivables - E 6.58 - B - - 6.58
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which = = - - - - -
have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit - : - 243.33 77.44 320.77
impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - B - B - -
good
Disputed Trade receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit - - - - - . -
impaired

- 6.58 - - 243.33 77.44 327.35

For Bright Buildtech Pvt. Ltd.
i

o
Director
q it




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

9 Cash and cash equivalents
a. Cash in hand

b. Balances with banks
- on current accounts

10 Other bank balances

a. Balance with banks
- in fixed deposits account (see note below)

Note:

Deposit with banks having maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months are the deposits lying with

banks against bank guarantees issued by the bank to various government authorities.

1 Loan

a. Loan and advance to related parties (see note ' below and note 32)
b. Loan and advance to others

i Unsecured, considered good

il.  Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Allowances for doubtful advances (expected
credit loss allowances)

Notes:
i.  Detail of loans and advances given:

As at March 31, 2024

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
4.03 0.03
435.33 130.31
439.36 130.34
7.05 6.66
7.05 6.66
14,306.23 13,568.46
666.47 816.57
B 629.20
666.47 1,445.77
- (629.20)
14,972.70 14,385.03

As at March 31, 2023

Type of borrower
Amount of loan % of total Amount of loan % of total
outstanding loans outstanding loans
Promoters/ Holding Company 14,306.23 100.00% 13,283.83 94.12%
Directors . 3 - "
Key manegerial personel 2 - R
Related parties
- Fellow subsidiary 3 - - .
- Companies under common control / Significant - 284.63 5.88%
Influence i
14,306.23 100.00% 13,568.46 100.00%

ii. The above loan is given after complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The loan was given in

accordance with the terms and conditions of the loan agreement.

iii. The above loan of Rs. 14306.23 lakhs (PY Rs. 13283.33 lakhs ) given to related party are interest free.
iv. Loan and advance given to others of Rs. 666.47 lakhs (Previous Year 1445.77 lakhs) are interest free.

For Bright Buildtech Pvt. Ltd.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006P TC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements )

12 Equity share capital

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March,2023
No. of shares Rs./ lakhs No. of shares Rs./ lakhs
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs, 10 sach - 10,050,000 1,005 10,050,000 1.005
10,050,000 - 1,008 10,050,000 1,005
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Eaquity shares of Rs, 10 each 11,625 1.16 11,625 1.16
11 1.16 11,625 1.16
a. Reconciliation of equity shares As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March,2023
No. of shares Rs./ lakhs No. of shares Rs./lakhs
Balance as at the beginning of the year 11625 1.16 11,625 1.16
Add: Increase during the year . ~ -
Balance as al the end of the year ___ 11625 1.18 11,625 1.16

b. Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The company has equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is enlitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ansuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of Company, the holders of 2quity shares will be entilled |0 receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts,
The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders, During the year, the amount of per share dividend recognised as
distributions to equity shareholders is Rs, Nil (as at 31 March, 2023 Rs. Mil).

¢. Shares held by Holding Company

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
No. of shares No. of shares
Star Landcrafl Private Limited 11,625 11,625
(Meta Town Planners Pt Ltd meraed into Slar Landorafl Private Limited w.e.f 01/09/2023 — _— __ _
o 11,625 i 11,625
d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Year ended Year ended

Name of shareholder

Star Landeraft Private Limited

(Mega Town Planners Pt |t merged into
Star Landcraft Private Limited w.e.f.
01/08/2023 )

2. Details of share held by Promoters*

Promotor Name

-_—

Star Landeraft Private Limited

(Mega Town Planiners Pt [td merged inta
Star Landeraft Private Limited w.e.f.
01/09/2023 )

Mr. Ajay Kumar

(Nominee of behalf of Star Landcraft
Private Limited)

* As defind under the Companies Act, 2013

31 March, 2024

31 March, 2023

" Noof shares % huldingm_ No of shares % holding
11,625 100.00% 11,625 100.00%
Year ended Year ended % Change
o HMarch,2024 0 5 March, 2023 =
Mo of shares % holding No of shares % holding
11,624 99.99 11,624 59.99 -
1 0.01 1 0.01 -
— . — -
11,625 11,625 100.00 -

Mega Town Planners Private Limited merged into Star Landcraft Privale Limited pursuant to the order issued by Hon'ble NCLT daled 01/09/2023

For

Bright Buildtech Pvt, Ltg
S PV, L,
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Director



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

R S

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
13 Other equity
a. Retained earnings (10,359.57) (10,083 94)
b. Securities premium 1,850.94 1,850.94
(8,508.63) (8,233.00)
Other equity consist of the following
i. Retained earnings
Balance at the beginnning of year (10,083.94) (1 3;‘3233)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (275.64) 3, 0.13
Other comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year = (0.13)
(10,359.57) (10,083.94)

ii. Securities premium 50,64
Balance at the beginnning of year 1,850.94 1,850.
Premium on issue of shares g

1,850.94 1,850.94
Note:
Debenture redemption reserve has not been created during the year.
|"'FL i Jlf_"" F Rieilods
SNt B iﬂr"LC'f‘r‘ |.:.;"L_"' !
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./lakhs
14 Borrowings
I. Non-current borrowings
a. 1% Non Convertible Debentures (NCD') (see note 'I' below) 12156.69 12,156.69
-Unsecured
b. 1% Non Convertible Debentures (NCD') (see note ' below) 8481.41 8,481.41
-Unsecured
20,638.10 20,638.10
¢. Loans from others
i. Loan From NBFC's (see note ‘Il below)- Secured 65.70 1.870.36
ii. Loan from related party (see note 'IV' below) -
65.70 1,870.36
Less: Amount disclosed under ‘Current maturities of long-term debt/ repayble on demand' 20,703.80 22 508.46
Il. Current borrowings
A. Current borrowings
Unsecured - at amortised cost
a, Deferred payments (refer note '\ below) - 4,661.43
(including accrued interest)
b. Loans and advances from related parties (see note "I\ below)- Secured 3,128.20 494.93
c. Loans and advances from others (see note 'VI' below) 1,201.52 524344
B. Current maturities of long-term debt/ repayble on demand 20.,703.80 22,508.46
25,033.52 32,908.26

Notes:

l. Details of NCD issued by the Company

a. Rate of interest:

1% interest on NCD's shall accrue on 31 March every year and shall be paid subject to availability of distributable profits.

b. Terms and conditions

jil.

215 no's (as at 31 March, 2023 215 no's), 1% Unsecured, Redesmable. Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs 100 lakhs éach are outstanding
towards Clear Horizon Investments Pte. Ltd (lender).

150 no's (as at 31 March, 2023 150 no's), 1% Rated, Listed, Unsecured, Redeemable, Cumulative Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs 100 lakhs
each are outstanding towards Clear Horizon Investments Pte, Ltd (lender).

During earlier year, the Company has entered into an amendment agreement with lender under which the Company has repaid Rs, 8,500.00 lakhs in
October 2018 and the lender has agreed to waive off Rs. 3,000 lakhs.

Out of the remaining debentures of Rs. 25,000 lakhs, Rs. 4,500 lakhs have to be paid in September 2020 (paid on 14 June 2021, Rs: 4,316.06 lakhs)
and balance debentures of Rs. 20,638.10 lakhs shall be redeemable on 1 September, 2023 unless such date is extended thereafter with mutual written
agreement between the Company and the Investor. On 28 August, 2023, the Company and the Investor mutually agreed to extend the maturity of non
convertible debentures till 01 September, 2026, but approval from the concerned authority for extension of maturity of debentures is pending as of
reporting date.

However, the Company is expecting realisation of money from the sale of inventory and repay the outstanding amount within one year,

¢. The financial laibilties are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

d. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss,

For Bright Buildtech Pvt, Ltd
‘5"'-' .
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Il. Loans from non banking financing companies

a. Terms and conditions
During the financial year 2021-22, the Company had entered into a common loan agreement with CSL Finance Limited (‘CSL') and Rajasthan Global Securities

Private Limited (RGSPL) collectively for closing loan facility with Yes Bank and project financing. The CSL Finance Limited is the lead banker as per the
common loan agreement,

b. Rate of interest:
Interest of 16% per annum payable manthly is charged on outstanding borrewings during the year.

c. Security
i, The loan is secured by registered motgage of the immovable project assets and development rights of the project (Woodview Residencies or Ace Palm
Floors)

il.  Exclusive charge on the movable fixed assets and current assets including receivables (sold/ unsold) of the project and Escrow of all receivables of
project.

iii. Personal guarantee of Mr. Ajay Kumar and Mr. Pratap Sigh Rathi.

iv. Corporate guarantee of Mega Town Planners Private Limited. (Now Merged into Star Landeraft Pvt Ltd as per NCLT order dated 01.09.2023)

d. Details of terms of repayment in respect of the secured loans

Amount Amount
Particluars 31 March, 2024 21 March, 2023
Rs./ Lakhs Rs./ Lakhs
Upto 1 year 65.70 1,870.36
1to 3 years - -
3to 5 years -
More than 5 years - -

lll. Loan from related parties

a. Terms and conditions
During the FY 2020-21, Ace Mega Structure Private Limited (related party) has obtained loan from Yes bank which has been passed on by the related party to
the Company, repayable in 12 equal quarterly installments after maratorium period of 36 months starting from 18 July, 2022 and last installment falling due on
17 July , 2025 and Rs. 520.16 lakhs amount have been transferred from trade payable as per the contractual arrangement with the party,

During the FY 2023-24, the company has obtained Interest Free Loan from Ace Infracity Developers Pvt Ltd & Ace Builders & Promoters Pyt Ltd for Rs 1000.00
lakhs & Rs, 1440 Lakhs respectively repayable on demand for the payment of EDC payable at DTCP Haryana.

b. Rate of interest
Interest of 8 % per annum payable monthly is charged on ‘outstanding borrowings of Ace Mega Structures Pyt Ltd during the year.
No Interest has been charged on Loan taken From Ace Infracity Developers Pvt Ltd & Ace Builders & Promoters Pyt Ltd.

c. Security
For Loan Taken from Ace Mega Structures Pyt Ltd
i.  Exclusive charge on land and building of 'Bright Buildtech' project,

il. Exclusive charge on the movable fixed assets and current assets including receivables (sold/ unsold) of the project and Escrow of all receivables of
project.
iii. Personal guarantee of Mr. Pratap Sigh Rathi and Mr. Ajay Kumar.

No Security on Loan taken has been taken from Aceo Infracity Developers Pvt Ltd & Ace Builders & Promoters Pt Ltd

d. Details of terms of repayment in respect of the secured loans

Amount Amount
Particulars 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ Lakhs Rs./ Lakhs
Upto 1 year 3,128.20 494,93
1to 3 years - -
3to 5 years - -

More than 5 years

The Land license of the project land is the name of Orris Infrastrucure Private Limited, which enter in an arrangement with Department Town and Country Planning
(DTCPY) , Government of Haryana for deferrment of liabilties with respect to government dues, the share of the Company in the dues has been fully paid during th
year.

IV. Loans from others
Loan from others is repayble on demand which is interest free and loan outstanding of Rs.1,201.52 lakhs (PY: Rs. 4,858.59 lakhs).

For Bright Byjjgy
Qeéd] Pvt, Lig,
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

15 Deferred tax fiabilities | {Assets)

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (AS) 12 on “Income taxes"
on account of losses. Further, due to uncertainty of future taxable income, deferred

16 Provisions

Non-current
Provision for gratuity

Current
Provision for income tax (net)
Provision for gratuity

17 Trade payables

a. - Total outstanding dues of micro and small enferprises (see note below)
b. - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Notes:

Aging for trade payables outstanding®
As at March 31, 2024

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

As at March 31, 2023

i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

* The aging is done from the transaction date.

- Based on prudence, as at 31 March 2024,
tax assets have not been recognised.

no deferred tax asset has been created

As at As at
31 Mar, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./lakhs
5.34 335
5.34 335
0.22 0.01
0.22 0.01
. 45.90
54228 1,068.50
542.26 111441
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 1 year  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
) Years
Rs. ! lakh Rs. / lakh Rs. [ lakh Rs. [ lakh Rs. [ lakh Rs. [ lakh
49482 7.00 5.55 34,89 542.26
- N 494,82 7.00 5.55 34.89 54226
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
Years
" Rs./lakh Rs. ! lakh Rs. [ lakh Rs. / lakh Rs. /[ lakh Rs. ! lakh
- 4590 - - 45.90
496.85 32822 0.17 24326 1,068.50
- 542,75 328.22 0.17 243.26 111441

For Bright py;
right Byildtech Put. Ltq,

/



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As at As at
ii. The above amount of trade payables also includes amount payable to its related parties (refer note 32), 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
iii. The disclosure of the amount outstanding to micro enterprises and small enterprises are as follows:
a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of accounting year
- Principal - 45.90
- Interest due thereon z
b. the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;
c. the amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED - -
Act, 2006 not paid)
d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 220 220
e. The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as - -
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upen by the auditors.
18 Other financial liabilities
a. Current
I. Interest accrued
- on Non Cenveriible Debentures (NCD') 2,583.62 2,408.20
- ontrade payable (refer note 17) 2.20 2.20
2,585.82 2,410.40
18 Other current liabilities
a. Advances from customers 12,987.71 17,658.30
b. Advance for sale of land 3,603.03 1,459.98
c. Statutory dues §2.00 84,00
16,682.74 19,202.28

T o

For Bright Buildgech pyq
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

20 Revenue from operations

a. Revenue from sale of land
b. Revenue from sale of Flats

21 Other income

a. Interest income earned on financial assets that are not
designated as fair value through profit or loss:
- from banks on deposits
- other advances
b. Scrap sale
c. Miscellaneous income
d. Bad Debts Recovered

22 Cost of land/ development rights & Costruction WIP

a. Cost of sale of Land
b. Cost of sale of Flats

!3 Employee benefits expense

i. Salaries and wages

ii. Gratuity expense (Refer note 35)
iii. Contribution to provident fund

iv. Staff welfare expense

4 Finance costs
a. Interest costs
i- Interest on debenture
ii. Interest on borrowing
iii. Other finance cost
iv. Interest on Statutory dues
v. Interest on refund to customer

Depreciation and amortisation expense
a. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Period Ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
11,221.69 10,735.66
2,874.29 -
14,095.98 10,735.66
0.43 0.60
9.93 74.07
20.75 6.36
- 0.03
766.63 &
797.74 81.06
10,544 .39 10,840.74
2,507.53 -
13,051.92 10,840.74
74.26 7227
2.20 1.24
2.76 2.88
21.51 17.53
100.72 93.92
206.38 133.39
238.29 717.75
87.55 65.70
1.47 36.12
365.05 30.56
898.74 983.52
3.89 5.55
3.89 5.55

ror Bright Buildtech Pvt. Lid.
=

Directar



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Period Ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
26 Other expenses Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
a. Rates and taxes 210.40 237.46
b. Bank charges 0.26 2317
c. Legal and professional 223.93 93.54
d. Payments to auditors (see note below) 8.00 8.00
e. Business promotion 1563.92 19.37
f. Printing and Stationery 0.73 2.60
g. Miscellaneous expenses 70.79 53.35
h. Commission & Brokerage Expense 446.07 -
1,114.10 437.49
Note:
Payment made to auditors comprises: (excluding GST)
i. Statutory audit fees 8.00 8.00
ii. Reimbursement of expenses - £
8.00 8.00
27 Exceptional Items
Reversal of allowance for expected credit loss E =
Loss on sale of current investments = &
Debentures carried at fair value - 4,664 .51
- 4,664.51

For Bright Buildtech Pvt. Ltd,
b’
-7

f{ . / o Director




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs

28 Income taxes

Current tax
For current year
MAT credit

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss -

Other comprehensive income section
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss =

Reconcilation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
prevailing income tax rate

Profit/(loss) before tax (275.64) 3,120.01

Income tax rate (Current year MAT rate 17. 16%, 25.17% 25.17%
Previous year income tax rate 26%)

Calculated income tax expense

Adjusting non-taxable finance cost of earlier years (see note below)

Income tax expense

785.24
(785.24)

Note:
The Company has not availed benefit of the finance cost in their income tax return in the earlier years amounting to Rs. 10,641.90

lakhs recognised due to Ind AS.

29 Earning per share

Net profit attributable to the shareholders (Rs./ lakhs) (275.64) 3,103.09
Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares during the year 11,625 11.625
Basic earning per share (2,371.12) 26,693.26
Diluted earning per share (2,371.12) 26,693.26

For Bright Buildtech Pvi. Ltd.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

30 Finaneial instruments
i. Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to
a. Safaguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and
b. maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (barrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the Company
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitars capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet),

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at As at
Note 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Debt 25,033.52 32,908.26
Cash and Bank balances (446.42) (137.01)
Net debt 24,587.10 32,771.25
Total Equity (8,507.47) (8,231.84)
Net debt to equity ratio (%) -289.01% -398.10%
ii. Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Financial assets
a, Cash and cash equivalents ] 439.36 130.34
b. Other bank balances 10 7.05 6.66
¢. Loans and advances 11 14,872.70 14.385.03
d. Trade receivables B - 558
@, Other non-current financial assets 4 8.00 8.01
Financial liabilities
a. Borrowings
I. Long term borrowings 14 . -
ii. Short term borrowings (Including current maturity of long-term debt) 14 25033.52 32,908.26
b. Trade payables 17 542 26 1,114.41
c. Other financial libailities
- Current 18 2,585.82 241040

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair value higrachy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable
and consists of the following three levels:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date:

Level 2 inputs are Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Forfinancial assets and liabilities included in | avel 3 of fair value hierachy have been valued using the cost approach to arrive at their fair value.

The Company does not have any assets and liabilities which need to categorie as 'fair value through profit and loss' and 'fair value through other
comprehensive income!'

For Bright Buildtech Pvt, Lid,
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL.2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

lii. Financial risk management objectives

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to interest rates, liquidity and credit risk. which may adversely impact the fair
value of its financial instruments.

The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial
assets andliabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the board of directors. The risk
management framework aims to;

- Create a stable business planning enviranment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company's business
plan.

- Achieve greater predictability to edrnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

a. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price
of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates and other market
changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

i. Foreign currency risk management

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and equity, where any
transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency.

As the Company has not transaction in currecy other than domestic currency, the Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

ii. Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference
rates could have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs,

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities. The Company's interest rate eXposure is
mainly related to debt obligations. Also. the Company regulary review market interest rates compairing with the applicable rate of
interest on liabilities,

As at 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023, financial liability of Rs. Nil and Rs. Nil, respectively, was subject to variable interest rates.
Increase/decrease of 100 basis PoINts in interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decrease/increase in profit/(loss) befare
tax of Rs. Nil lakhs and Rs. Nil lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023, respectively.

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneous parallel shifts in the yield curve. Although some assets and liabilities
may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react correspandingly to changes in market interest rates. Also, the
interest rates on some types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate with changes in market interest rates, while inlerest rales on other
lypes of assets may change with a lag.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also
assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date. The period end balances are not necassarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/{loss) before tax basis).

iiil. Other price risk

The Company does not have any financial instrument which will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising
from interest rate risk or currency risk), hence the Company is not significantly exposed to other price risk.

For Bright Buildtech pyg. Ltd.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

b. Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising
obligations. Credit risk encompasseas both
risks.

from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or
the direct risk of defaull and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration

Credit risk has always been managed through monitoring the credit worthiness of customers in the normal course of business.

The Company uses Expected Credit Loss ('ECL") madel to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to

compute the expecled credit loss allowance for trade rececivables which is based on historical experience.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

As at
31 March, 2024

As at
31 March, 2023

Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Opening balance 32077 320,77
Additional provision made -
Provision adjusted against the amount written off 177.46 g
143.31 320.77

Closing provision

The provision for loss allowances of trade receivables have been made by the management on the evaluation of trade receivables. The
management at each reporting period made an assessment on recoverability of balances and on the best estimate basis the provision for

loss allowances have been created.

- Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meel its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company has obtained fund and non-fund

based working capital lines from various banks

The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial

flexibility.

During the year the Company generated sufficient cash fiow operations to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

I'he table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at-
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

lessthan 1 1to5year more than 5 year Total

year

Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings 25,033.52 - - 25,033.52
Trade payables 542.26 - - 542.26
Other financial liabilities 2,585.82 - . 2,585.82
As at 31 March 2023
Borrowings 32,908.26 - - 32,908.26
Trade payables 1,114.41 . . 1,114.41
Other financial liabilities 241040 - - 2,410.40

31 Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

The Company has not meet the conditions of CSR rules, net worth, turnover and net profit hence the provisions of CSR not applicable to the

Company.

For Bright
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

32 Related parties
a. List of related parties

i. Holding Entity
a.  Star Landcraft Private Limited
(Mega Town Planners Pvt Ltd merged into Star Landcraft Private Limited w.e.f. 01/09/2023 )

ii. Entities over which individuals are able to exercise control/significant influence and with whom transactions have taken
place during the year:

a. Ace Mega Structures Private Limited
b. Ace Infracity Developers Private Limited
c.  Ace Builders & Promoters Put Ltd
Note:
Mega Town Planners Private Limited merged into Star Landcraft Private Limited pursuant to the order issued by Hon'ble NCLT dated 01/09/2023.

ii. As per the order issued by the Hon'ble NCLT, Allahabad Bench dated 01.09.2023 in the Company Petition CP(CAA) No.06/ALD/2023 connected with
Company Application CA (CAA) No.04/ALD/2023 under Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mega Town Planners Private Limited {Holding
Company of Bright Buildtech Private Limited) and Ace Landcraft Realtors Private Limited (Ultimate Holding Company of Bright Buildtech Private Limited)
have been merged into Star Landcraft Private Limited,

Hence, Star Landcraft Private Limited shall be treated as the Holding Company of Bright Buildtech Private Limited from September 01, 2023 onwards.

For Bright Buildtech Pvt. Ltd.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

33 Segment information

The Chief operaling decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segments performance focuses on real estate, the Company operates in
a single business segment. The Company is operating in India, which is considered as single geographical segment. Accordingly, the reperting requirements for
segment disclosure prescribed by Ind AS 104 are nof applicable,

4 C it and conting

8. The estimated amounl of contracts remaining ta be executed on capital amaounts and nol provided for (net of advances) amount to Rs. Nil {as al 31 March, 2024
amounl to Rs. Nil},

b. The Company has other commitments, for purchase of goods and services and employee benefits, in normal course of business.

¢, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred Lo the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. Confingent liabilities (lo the extent nat provided for)

As at As at
31 March,2024 31 March,2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Income tax 3.101.83 1.625 80
VAT 186.36 186.36

Customer complaints pending in court*

*Itis not possible for the company to estimate cashoutflows, To extent to which an outflow of fund will
be required is dependent on the pending resolution of the respective proceedingsflegal cases and it is
determinable on receipt of judgement/decision pending with various forum/autharities/court.

e The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable [osses,

35 Employee benefit plans

a. Defined contribution plans
The Company makes Provident Fund, Employee Slale Insurance Scheme and Labour Welfare Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans. for

qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribule a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The
contributions payable to these plans by the Company are @t rates specified in the rules of the schemes, Employer's contribution to provident fund and employee's
state insurance scheme recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for \he year are as under;

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
" Rs/lzkhs Rs./ lakhs
Cantribution to provident fund 2.76 288
o 276 288

vor Bright Bujlgse




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

b. Defined benefit plan
Gratuity

The Campany has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Employee who have completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (las!
drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme of gratuity is unfunded.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent valuation of the present value of defined benefil abligation were carried as at 31 March, 2024 in which the present
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and paslt service cost were measured using the project unit credit method.,

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

As at As at
31 March, 2024 ___31March, 2023
Discount rale (%) 7.20% 7.55%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision IALM (2012 - 14) IALM (2012 - 14)
for disability
Relirement Age (Years) 58 58
Withdrawal Rate (%) (Ages)
From 41 to 44 vears 8.82% 8.82%
From 45 1o 49 years 5.58% 5.58%
From 50 to 54 vears 2.94% 2.94%
Above 55 vears 1.47% 1.47%
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Service cost: Rs./ lakhs Rs.! lakhs
Current service cost 180 mm
Past service cost including curtailment gainsflosses o = -
Components of defined benefit costs recoanised in profit or loss _ _ 1.60 1.11
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Actuarial gain/(loss) from change in demographic assumplions < B
Actuarial gain/(loss) from change in financial assumptions 017 (0.04)
Actuarial gain/{loss) from change in experience adjustment 0.43 017
Actuarial gain/(loss) from plan asseis = -
0.60 0.13
Total - 2.20 1.24
Notes:

i The current service cost and the pasi service cost including curtailment gainflosses for the year are included in the ‘Employae banefits expense’ line item in the
Statement of profit and loss.

ii. The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income
iii. The Gratuity scheme of the Company is unfunded.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is as follows:




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL.2006P TC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs

Defined benefit abligation at the beginning of the year 323 1.89
Current service cost 1.60 1.1
Interest cost = =il =

4.83 310
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial gainfloss) from change in demographic assumptions > =
Acluarial gain/(loss) from change in financial assumptions 07 (0.04)
Actuarial gain/(loss) from change in experience adjustment o 0.43 0.17

0.60 0.13
Benefits paid - -
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 543 3.23

other assumplions constant.

c. Sensilivity analysis:

Ifthe expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 0.50%, the defined benefit obligation would changes as:

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
o Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
— by1oow by1oow by 1.00% S ]
Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs Rs./ lakhs
Discount rate 924 10,73 924 10.73
Salary arowth rate 10,73 §.24 1073 8.24

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumplions is compuled by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit abligation by one
percentage, keeping all other acluarial assumplions constant.

36 Movement of invento ry:

4. Land and development rights:

As at As at
31 March,2024 31 March,2023

B Rs./ lakhs RsJlakhs

Opening inventory 381468 5.903.62
Add; Purchase of land - -
Less: Cost of goods sold 2.056.05 2.088.94
Closing inventory S 1,758.63 381468

b. Construction work in progress;

Opening inventory 27 42957 3347049
1,387.22 1.651.79

Add: Material cost

Add: Cost of civil and finishing work 459.03 768.55
Add: Rates and laxes 4943 93.33
Add: Overheads 178.07 14B.46
Less: Cost of qoods sold (10,995 87) (8,703.05)
Closing inventory 18,507.45 27,429.57
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

The Company entered into a Debentures Pledge Agreement (the ‘Agreement) dated December 03, 2014 with Lotus Greens Constructions Private Limited (LG
Construction’) and IL&FS Trust Company Limited (the "Debenture trustee’) to secure 4,500 non-converlible debentures of Rs. 10.00 lakhs each issued by .G
Caonslructions. As per the terms of the agreement, to secure the payments or repayments of the said debentures the Company has pledged its investment into 90 Mon
Convertible Debentures and 40 Optionally Convertible Debentures of LG Constructions.

Further, as per the terms of Subordination Agreement dated December 03, 2014 entered with Debenture lrustee, the Company has agreed not o claim, demand,
receive or otherwise in respect of Company's debenture investments in LG Construction till the lime the aforesaid 4,500 non-convertible debentures issue by LG
construction are paid and discharged in full,

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022 the Company has entered into Debenture Purchase Agreement on 9 June, 2021, as per agreement the Company has
sold the 90 rated, unlisted, secured, redeemable, non convertible debentures ('NC[') of Rs. 10,000,000 each and 40 Optionally Convertible Debentures ('OCD') of
Rs, 10,000,000 each totalling to Rs, 13,000.00 lakhs at par. accordingly the provision for impairment on acerued interest on investment aggregating to Rs. 7,667.84
lakhs recognised during the year ended on March 31, 2022 is reversed and actual loss on investment is recognised during year ended March 31, 2022,

The company has purchased development right from Orris Infrastructure Pyt Lid as earlier there was joint agreement of Bright and Orris infrastruciure. Due to this, the
company has filed an application for change in developers with Department Town and Country Planning (DTCR), Chandigarh whose approval was received on 22nd

October 2021,

Also, the company has filed an application for Real Estate Regulatory Authority (RERA) Licence with name ACE PALM Floars {earlier il was "Woodiew Residencies’}
for which approval has been received on 22 February, 2021 vide Registration cerlificate RC/IREPHARERAIGGMI439/171/2021/07 according te which the said project
is 1o be completed by December 2022, However, the Company is in process to gel extension for project completion date,

Lease commitments

The company does not have any non-cancellable aperating lease.

The Company is engaged in the business of real estate development, which has been classified as infrastructural facilities as per Schedule VI lo the Companies Act,
2013, Accordingly, provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the company and hence no disclosure under that section is required.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits, during employment and post-employment benefits, has received the Presidential assent in
Seplember 2020. This Code has been published in the Gazelte of India. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yel lo be notified and
the rules for quantifying the financial impacl are also yet to be issued. The Company will evaluate the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the
financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

The Company have a negalive net worth of Rs. 8,058.89 lakhs (Previous year Rs; 8231.84 lakhs). The Company is expecting the positive inflow from the sale of
residential plots and flats of group housing society under development at Sector 89-90 in Gurugram. Further the Company is expecling the gain on setflement of
outstanding debentures as well.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Return on investment

5

Due to sale of plots in the current year there is increase in profitability of the company as compared o previous year thereby

Due to repayment of loans during the current year

44 Disclosure of financial ratios
Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at Variance % Reason for
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 variance
a. Current ratio Current assats Current liability 0.80 0.84 -5%
b, Debt equity ratio Total debt Total equity (2.04) (4.00) 27% Note 2
c. Debt service coverage ratio Net operating Income Total debt service 0.03 (0.02) 250% Note 1
d. Return on equity ratio Net income Equity shareholder's fund NA NA N.A
e. Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory 0.49 0.31 59%
f. Trade receivables turnover Net sales Average trade 4,284,493 339.04 1164%
ratio receivables
9. Trade payables turnover ratio Net purchases Average trade payables 17.02 8.54 99%
h. Net capital turnover ratio Net sales Working capital (1.56) (1.18) 32% Note 1
i. Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales -2% 29% 107% Note 1
I, Return on capital employed Earning before interest and Capital employed -T% -50% 86% Note 1
tax
k. _Return on investment Earning on invesiments Average investments NA MNA NA.
Working of the ratios
Basis of ratios Year ended Ratio Year ended Ratio
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 -
Rs./ lakhs
a. Current ratio
Current assets 35,807 81 0.80 46,508.87 0.84
Current liability 44 844 55 55,635,35
b. Debt Equity ratio
Total debt ({Long term debt+Short term debt) 25,033.52 (2.94) 3290828 (4.00)
Total equity {Equity share capital + Other aquity) (8,507 .47) {8,231.84)
c. Debt service coverage ratio
Net operating income (PAT+Dep.+Finance cost) 626.98 0.03 {555.43) (0.02)
Total debt service (Long term debt+Short term debt) 25,033.52 32,908.26
d. Return on equity ratio NA NA, NA
Equity shareholder's fund (Share capital+ Reserves and
2. Inventory turnover ratio 0.49 0.3
Cost of goods sold 13,051.92 10,840.74
Average inventory 26,728.14 35,309.18
Trade receivables turnover ratio 4,284.49 339.04
Net sales (Total sales - Sales returmn) 14,095,958 10,735.66
Average trade receivables = (Opening debtors +Closing debtors) / 2 3.29 31.67
- Trade payables turnover ratio 17.02 8.54
Net sales (Tatal sales - Sales return) 14,095.98 10,735.66
Average trade payables = {Opening creditor +Closing creditor) / 2 828.33 1,257.84
Net capital turnover ratio
Net sales (Total sales - Sales return) 14,085.98 {1.56) 10,735.66 (1,18}
Working capital = Current assets - Current liablities (9,036.74) (9.125.49)
Net profit ratio -2% 29%
Net profit (275.64) 3,103.09
Net sales (Total sales - Sales return) 14,095.98 10,735.66
Return on capital employed
Earnings before interest and tax 623.09 -7.00% 4.103.53 -50.00%
Capital employed = Total assets - Current liabilities (8.502.13) (8,228.48)
NA NA NA

improving net operating income ratio,



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
__Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

45 Other statutory information

46

47

48

a. During the current financial year, company has not undertaken any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

b, No penalties were imposed by the regulator during the financial year ended 31 March, 2024

¢. There are no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of account earier and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current
financial year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961

d. During the current year company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium) to any other person(s) or entities,
including foreign entities (intermediaries),

e The Company have not traded or invested in Crypte currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

f. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

8. The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

h. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

i. During the year, the Company does not have any working capital limit, hence not required to submit quarterly stock statement with the banksfinancial
institutions

J. The Company has not made any further investments in any company, hence clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number

of Layers) Rules. 2017 is not applicable on the Company.

Events after the reporting period
Other than this, There are no event observed after the reported period which have an impact on the Company's operation,

The previous peried figures have been re-grouped-classified to render them comparable with the figures of the current period and reliance is places by us on the

figures of previous auditor,

Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors on 27 May, 2024

In terms of our report attached

For MANV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

's Registratien No, 007351N
mar &\.

Mare pta

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bright Buildtech Private Limited

For BrightsBaAteEN put, Lid, Drey

Partner
Membership No. 085713 DIN: 015938? DIN: 0519518

| - Director Directar
Piace: New Delhi Place: Noida Place: Noida
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Corporate information

Bright Buildtech Private Limited ('The Company'), was incorporated on 23 February, 2006. The Company operates as a real estate developer
primarily covering residential projects. The operations of the Company span all aspects of real estate development, from the identification and
acquisition of land, to the planning, execution and marketing of the projects.

The Company is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the Company is located at D-35 Anand Vihar, Delhi 110092, The Company's CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27 May 2024,

2 Material Accounting Policies :

21

2.2

2.3

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when
itis:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Itis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement

date;
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly: and
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable i ordhe-asset or liability.

o
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

24

25

26

27

Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of
the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of valuation of deferred tax assets and provisions and contingent liabilities,

Valuation of deferred tax assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained
under Note 2.9

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange of
goads or services that will be transferred to the customers taking into account contractually defined terms of payments. Revenue excludes taxes
and duties collected on behalf of the Government and is net of customer returns, rebates, discounts and other similar allowances.

i. Revenue from real estate projects — The Company derives revenue, primarily from sale of properties comprising of both commercial and
residential units. Revenue from sale of constructed properties is recognised at a 'Point of Time', when the Company satisfies the performance
obligations, which generally coincides with completion/possession of the unit, Revenue from sale of Flat is recognised when the sale
agreement is executed resulting in transfer of all significant risk and rewards of ownership and possession is handed over to the buyer,

i. Revenue from sale of land without any significant development is recognised when the sale agreement is executed resulting in transfer of all
significant risk and rewards of ownership and possession is handed over to the buyer.

ii. The revenue on account of interest on delayed payment by customers and expenditure on account of compensation / penalty for project
delays are accounted for at the time of acceptance / settlement with the customers due to uncertainties with regard to determination of amount

receivable / payable.

iv. Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on accrual basis on a time proportion basis. Interest income on other financial instruments is
recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

As a lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on

which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis
as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
re-measurements of the lease liability.

For Bright Buildtech Pvt. Ltg
o . Ltd,
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.8

2.9

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, in itially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
- The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if
the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is

reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zera.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee (Rs.),

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and
losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible

The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabifities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or su bstantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,

‘or Bright E-u.iid’cﬁh Pvt. Ltd.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.10

2.1

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (ifany).

Assets costing Rs.5,000 and below are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is computed on Straight-Line Method Method (‘'SLM') based on useful lives, determined based on internal
technical evaluation as follows:

Useful lives
Type of assets Method estimated by the
management
(in years)
Plant and machinery SLM 15 years
Office equipment SLM 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures SLM 10 years
Computers and Laptops 5LM 3 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains and losses arising from disposal of property plant and equipment which are
carried at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Impairment of tangible assets

Atthe end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in ‘order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs, When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the ecarrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

i
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201 DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

212

213

2,14

Inventories

Inventory comprises completed property for sale and property under construction (work-in-progress), Land cost, construction
cost, direct expenditure relating to construction activity and borrowing cost during construction period is inventarised to the
extent the expenditure is directly attributable to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Costs
incurredfitems purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/received,

i. Completed unsold inventory is valued at lower of cost and net relisable value. Cost of inventories are determined by
including cost of land (including development rights), internal development cost external development charges,
materials, services, related overheads and apportioned borrowing costs.

ii. Work in progress is valued at lower of cost and net relisable value. Work-in-progress represents costs incurred in
respect of unsold area of the real estate projects or costs incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised.
Cost comprises cost of land (including development charges), internal development cost, external development charges,
materials, services, overhead related to projects under construction and apportioned borrowing costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis
probable that the Company will be required to setile the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably,

Onerous Contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected fo be received fram the contract

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to getready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred,

~or Bright Buiidte‘g{m Pvt. Ltd.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.15 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or logs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame establishad
by regulation or convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income s recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income” line itern.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOC! criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at

FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTQCI criteria may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
Inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss, The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

The Company has not made investments in equity instruments,

For Bright Buildtech Pvt, Ltd.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occu rring as the weights.
Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate (or credit -adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company
estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses If the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion
of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvemnent in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in
profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of
a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Emr Brichd Detlds I Dirs . |
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilites
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by
the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies

set out below.

Financial liabilites subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs
of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability ,or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss itincurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

~ the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of Ind AS 18.

Derecognition of financial liabilites

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
madification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss,
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2,16 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1st, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendment requires companies to disclose their material accounting policies instead of their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is considered material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. The scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 has been narrowed 50 that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments help entities distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a
change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Accounting estimates are
"monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting
estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have a significant impact on its standalone
financial statements.
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